
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MEETING 
Wednesday, November 3, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
II. CITIZEN COMMENT 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of September 22, 2021 
 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Environmental Commission involvement in the City of Franklin’s National Night 
Out program Monday, August 2, 2021.  Status of funding for garden giveaway. 

B. Review of articles for the City of Franklin Newsletter.   

C. Update on Buckthorn Subcommittee activity and/or proposals. 

D. City of Franklin street tree list update-recommendation to Common Council. 

E. Environmental Commission participation in City of Franklin Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Task Force, to provide assistance in revisions to the Natural 
Resource Protection Standards and other elements of the City of Franklin UDO. 

F. City water supply testing overview-continuation. 

G. Landfill life expectancy and future plans.  

H. Report on Environmental Commission possible involvement in future Franklin 
Library’s Trunk or Treat events.   

V. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review of Environmental Commission Bylaws. 

B. Review of new Code of Conduct for all elected and appointed officials.  

VI. SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING 

A. December 8, 2021 



Environmental Commission Agenda 
November 3, 2021 
Page 2 

VII. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

A. Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources programs or other organizations for 
presentation at the City of Franklin Library-dates/schedule [this item/event is in 
process due to COVID-19 related restrictions] [tentative date:  April, 2022].  

B. Funding for Environmental Commission activities. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather 
information about an Agenda item over which they have decision making responsibility.  
This may constitute a meeting of the Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village 
Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 

 Notice is given that upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the
 needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
 information, please contact the Franklin City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.   
 
 
 
 



 

 

  CITY OF FRANKLIN 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MEETING  MINUTES 

September 22, 2021 
 

unapproved
 

 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
 

I. Chairman  Linda Horn  called  the  September 22,  2021 
regular meeting of the Environmental Commission to 
order at 7:00 p.m. in the Common  Council Chambers, 
Franklin  City  Hall,  9229 West  Loomis  Road,  Franklin, 
Wisconsin. 
 
On  roll  call,  the  following were  in  attendance:  Chair 
Linda  Horn,  Vice  Chair  Jamie  Groark,  Commissioners 
Patricia  Pomahac  and  Sudarshan  Sharma  and 
Alderman  Dan  Mayer.  Excused  was  Commissioner 
James  Cieslak  .  Also  present were  Associate  Planner 
Marion Ecks and City of Franklin Forester Tom Riha 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT 
 

II. The citizen comment period opened at 7:01 p.m. and 
closed at 7:01 p.m.. No citizens present.  
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  III.  
Minutes of the regular meeting of  
August 25, 2021. 
 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
Environmental Commission 
involvement in the City of Franklin’s 
National Night Out program 
Monday, August 2, 2021. Status of 
funding for garden giveaway.  
 
Review of articles for the City of 
Franklin Newsletter, from the Root‐
Pike WIN (Watershed Initiative 
Network), a 501(c)(3) non‐profit 
organization founded in 2001, 
program [this item/event is in 
process due to COVID‐19 related 
restrictions], including educational 
materials for Buckthorn (invasive 
species), that is, website information 
and QR (Quick Response) code (a 
two‐dimensional barcode used to 
share website links).  
 
Update on Buckthorn Subcommittee 
activity and/or proposals.  
 
 

A.
 
 
 
 
  IV. 
    A. 
 
 
 
 
 
    B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
  
   C. 
 
 
 

Commissioner Sharma moved and Vice Chair Groark 
seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting held August 25, 2021. On voice vote, 
all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (5‐0‐1). 
 
 
Commissioner Cieslak was excused. Status of funding 
to be addressed at future meeting. Discussion only. 
No action taken. 
 
 
 
Commissioner Pomahac to contact Franklin High 
School for possible articles from students taking 
Environmental Science classes.  
 
Commissioner Cieslak to be contacted regarding 
articles from the Southeast Wisconsin Invasive 
Species Consortium. Discussion only. No action taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vice Chair Groark commented on waiting for future 
references from Southeast Wisconsin Invasive Species 
Consortium as well as Milwaukee County.   Discussion 
only. No action taken.  



 

 

City of Franklin street tree list 
update‐best list reviews.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Environmental Commission 
participation in City of Franklin 
Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) Task Force, to provide  
assistance in revisions to the Natural 
Resource Protection Standards and 
other elements of the City of 
Franklin UDO.  
 

   D. 
 
 
 
 
   
  
 
 
 
E. 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 

Tom Riha, City Forester, referenced current updates 
for tree replacements, i.e., City of Franklin Municipal 
Ordinance, Sec. 240‐4, Master Street Tree Plan.  
 
Vice Chair Groark moved and Commissioner Sharma 
seconded a motion to recommend a new tree list to 
replace city of Franklin existing trees. A review of this 
list will be done on an annual basis. On voice vote, all 
voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (5‐0‐1). 
 
Vice Chair Groark reported meeting scheduled for 
August 26 was cancelled. A suggestion was made to 
include information in City of Franklin newsletter for 
November 2021. Discussion only. No action taken. 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS  V.  
City water supply testing overview.  
  
 
Landfill life expectancy and future 
plans.  
 
 
Environmental Commission 
involvement in the Franklin Library’s 
Trunk or Treat 2021 event to be held 
in the library's parking lot on 
October 21, 2021 from 5:00 pm to 
8:00 pm.  
 
SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDA 
ITEMS 
Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources programs or other 
organizations for presentation at the 
City of Franklin Library‐
dates/schedule [this item/event is in 
process due to COVID‐19 related 
restrictions] [tentative date: April, 
2022].  

A.

    
   B.  
 
 

     
     C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VI. 
    A. 
 
 
 
 
 
VII. 
    
    A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Associate  Planner  Ecks  will  discuss  at  next  meeting. 
Discussion only. No action taken. 
 
Associate Planner Ecks reported there is not a draft or 
plan  to  date.  Item  to be  addressed  at  next meeting. 
Discussion only. No action taken.  
 
Vice  Chair  Groark  and  Commissioner  Pomahac    will 
attend the October 21, 2021 event and report back at 
the  next  meeting  as  to  involvement  of  the 
Environmental  Commission  in  2022. Discussion Only. 
No action taken.  
 
 
 
Vice Chair Groark moved and Commissioner Sharma 
seconded a motion to move the October 27, 2021 
Environmental Commission meeting to November 3, 
2021. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried 
(5‐0‐1). 
 
 
 
No updates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 Funding for Environmental 
Commission activities.  
 
Review of tree canopy evaluation for 
new developments in the City of 
Franklin.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Notice is given that upon reasonable 
notice, efforts will be made to 
accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids 
and services.  For additional 
information, please contact the 
Franklin City Clerk’s office at (414) 
425‐7500. 

  B. 
 
 
  C. 
 
 
 
VIII 

Associate Planner Ecks will follow up at the November 
3, 2021 meeting.  
 
Associate Planner Ecks and City Forester Tom Riha 
provided background regarding current conditions. To 
be discussed under new business in February 2022.  
 
 
Vice Chair Groark moved and Commissioner Sharma  
seconded to adjourn the Environmental Commission 
meeting on September 22, 2021 at 7:57 p.m.. On 
voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried (5‐0‐1). 



1

Marion Ecks

From: ppomahac@sbcglobal.net
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 1:24 PM
To: Marion Ecks
Subject: Fw: Articles for Franklin Newsletter

Hello Marion, 
Here is prior correspondance with Patrick Gain, Environmental Science teacher at Franklin H.S. 
Please let me know you received these emails. 
Pat Pomahac 
 
----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: Gain, Patrick <patrick.gain@franklin.k12.wi.us> 
To: ppomahac@sbcglobal.net <ppomahac@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Sunday, October 3, 2021, 06:51:30 AM CDT 
Subject: Re: Articles for Franklin Newsletter 
 
Great, thanks, Pat!  I will get the feelers out to see what students might be interested in this 
opportunity! 
 
Pat Gain 

To help protect y
Micro so ft Office p
auto matic downlo
picture from the 

 
Science Teacher        ECO Club   March Madness  
Dept Coordinator           Advisor        Coordinator              
Franklin High School 
8222 S. 51st St. 
Franklin , WI 53132 
tinyurl.com/patgain 
 
 
 
On Sat, Oct 2, 2021 at 9:34 AM ppomahac@sbcglobal.net <ppomahac@sbcglobal.net> wrote: 
Good morning Pat. 
The deadline for submission for the November newsletter is Friday, October 22nd, 2021. 
When I get the 2022 schedule I will forward the dates for submission/publication to you. 
The newsletter contact person is Lisa Huening, Dept. of Administration, at City Hall, 
lhuening@franklinwi.gov, 414-858-1100. 
If you will be submitting an article for November, I will contact Lisa prior and inform her 
that it is being coordinated thru/by the Environmental Commission. 
Pat Pomahac 
City of Franklin, Environmental Commission 
 
 
On Saturday, October 2, 2021, 06:19:40 AM CDT, Gain, Patrick <patrick.gain@franklin.k12.wi.us> wrote:  
 
 
Hi Pat, 
 
Hope all is well.  Ironically enough, as you sent this, we were transporting kids to the Conservancy 
for Healing & Heritage for our kickoff event!  Being able to submit articles sounds like a great 
opportunity for the kids, and for our program to get some attention in the community!  Could you 



2

possibly find out when preferred dates for submission of articles might be?  So, if students wanted to 
have something included in the November 29th newsletter for example, when would they need to 
have the article submitted by? That'd help my timeline tremendously.  Thanks so much for thinking of 
us! 
 
Pat Gain 

To help protect y
Micro so ft Office p
auto matic downlo
picture from the 

 
Science Teacher        ECO Club   March Madness  
Dept Coordinator           Advisor        Coordinator              
Franklin High School 
8222 S. 51st St. 
Franklin , WI 53132 
tinyurl.com/patgain 
 
 
 
On Fri, Oct 1, 2021 at 2:41 PM ppomahac@sbcglobal.net <ppomahac@sbcglobal.net> wrote: 
Hi Pat, 
At our meeting last week the Environmental Commission asked me to contact you regarding 
having your students submit articles for the City of Franklin newsletter.  The newsletter is published
five times per year, i.e., week of Feb. 15th, May 17th, July 19th, September 20th, November 29th, 
all 2021 dates.  
Topics that would interest the Franklin community, for example, would be work done by the 
students 
at the Healing Garden at the Reimann Center, participation in different group acitivites, perhaps, 
Milwaukee Riverkeeper's "Adopt a River", etc.  If there is volunteer work with Wehr Nature Center, 
Audubon Society, etc., that would also be of interest.  We also encourage any student/students to 
submit articles related to stewardship, i.e., elimination of invasive species, climate change 
incentives, 
etc.  Prior to submitting directly to the City of Franklin, of course, any review and/or suggestion by 
the 
Environmental Commission will be gladly provided. 
Fingers crossed tonight for a Franklin win vs Oak Creek. 
Pat Pomahac 
City of Franklin, Environmental Commission 
 



 
 
 

  City of Franklin, Wisconsin  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Environmental Commission 
 
 
 
 Administrative Rules and Procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 March, 2009 
 



 
  
 
 
 
 Environmental Commission 
  
 Administrative Rules and Procedures 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
                                         
 Page   Article                      Title                          
 
                                    1           I   Name of Commission  
                                    1       II   Authorization  
                                    1        III   Membership  
                            1       IV            Duties 
  1       V   Officers  
 2      VI   Committees, Subcommittees  
 2     VII   Meetings  
 4     VIII   Order of Business  
 4       IX   Non-member Participation  
 4       X   Revisions, Amendments  
 
 
  

Exhibit  
A §10-14. of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Franklin, and individual Ordinances amendatory 
thereof   

 
 
 



 
 Page 1 
 
 Environmental Commission 
  
 Administrative Rules and Procedures 
 
 
Article I.  Name of Commission 
 
 The name of this Commission shall be the “Environmental Commission” of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “the Commission”.   
 
 
Article II.  Authorization 
 
 The authorization for the establishment of the Commission is set forth in Section 10-14 of 

the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as amended, hereinafter referred to as 
“Section 10-14”, which is incorporated herein by this reference and is presented in Exhibit 
A.   

 
 
Article III.  Membership 
 
Section 1. The composition of the Commission shall be as established in Section 10-14 A and as 

may otherwise be specified by the Common Council.   
 
Section 2. The terms of the members shall be as established in Section 10-14 A and as may 

otherwise be specified by the Common Council.   
 
Section 3. Each member shall have one (1) vote.  The Chairman may vote to affect the result.  Voting 

by proxy is not permitted. On a tie vote, the motion is lost.   
 
Section 4. All members shall serve without compensation.   
 
Section 5. A quorum shall be four (4) members, or a majority of all the members of the commission.  
 
Section 6. Actions, communications, etc. of Commission members are subject to Open Meeting Law, 

Wisconsin Statutes 19.59 including the Municipal Code and policies of the City of Franklin. 
 
Article IV.  Duties  
 
 The duties of the Commission shall be as established in City of Franklin Ordinance        

§10-14. and as may otherwise be specified by the Common Council. 
 
 
Article V.  Officers  
 
Section 1. The officers of the Commission shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary.   
 
Section 2. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by and from the Commission resident members.  

The Chair shall appoint the Secretary.    
 



 
City of Franklin Environmental Commission Administrative Rules and Procedures  Page 2 
 
 
Section 3. The term of Chair and Vice-Chair shall be from one election year to the next election.  

Elections to fill these offices shall normally be held at the first Commission meeting on or 
after April 30 of each subsequent year.  Elections to fill officer vacancies will be held at the 
first Commission meeting after the vacancy occurs.  

 
Section 4. The Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Commission, and shall have 

the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage to such office.  The Chair, with the 
assistance of the City staff, as appropriate, shall:   

 
 a) Call meetings of the Commission as needed to fulfill the duties of the Commission, and 

determine the time and place of such meetings.   
 b) Prepare agendas for meetings.   
 c) Prepare reports of Commission actions.  
 d) Provide notice to all Commission members.   
 e) Attend to correspondence of the Commission as approved by the Commission.   
  f) Determine that the Secretary keeps the official Minutes and records of the Commission.   
  g)Determine that all Commission members have these Administrative Rules and 

Procedures, and such other records as may be necessary for the satisfactory conduct 
of the duties of Commission member.   

 h) Have other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Commission.   
 
Section 5. When the Chair is unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall 

preside and assume the duties of the Chair until the Chair is able to preside.   
 
Section 6. When the Chair and the Vice-Chair are unable to preside or fulfill the duties of the Chair 

and a quorum of the Commission is present for a properly noticed and scheduled 
Commission meeting or hearing, the Secretary may call the Commission to order and shall 
temporarily preside solely over the selection of a Chair Pro Tempore by and from the 
Commission members present.  Upon selection, the Chair Pro Tempore shall preside and 
assume the duties of the Chair until the Chair or the Vice-Chair is able to preside.   

 
 
Article VI.  Committees, Subcommittees  
 
Section 1. The Commission may establish committees and subcommittees as deemed appropriate or 

necessary to fulfill the duties of the Commission.   
 
Section 2. The Chair shall appoint committee and subcommittee members and officers.   
 
 
Article VII.  Meetings  
 
Section 1.  A commissioner is excused from a scheduled meeting by notifying the chair. Failure to 

attend is considered absent. 
 
Section 2. The Commission, its committees and subcommittees shall meet as needed to fulfill the 

duties of the Commission.   
 
Section 3. The Commission may adopt a regular, periodic meeting schedule as needed to fulfill the 

duties of the Commission, and determine the time and place of such meetings.   
 



 
City of Franklin Environmental Commission Administrative Rules and Procedure  Page 3 
 
 
 
Section 3. All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the general public, and subject to the 

provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes (Open Meetings Act).   
 
Section 4. Except as otherwise provided herein or specified by the Common Council, the 

parliamentary procedure of the Commission shall be as provided in Robert’s Rules of 
Order, Newly Revised.   

 
Section 5. A record of all Commission actions shall be kept as part of its Minutes.   
 
Section 6. Any member of the Commission may place on the Commission agenda for consideration, 

discussion, action, etc. any matter that is properly within or related to the duties, rules, 
procedures, activities, etc. of the Commission, by notice to the Chair and the Secretary.   

 
Section 7. All materials and information related to matters to be considered by the Commission shall 

be delivered to the Secretary not later than seven (7) working days preceding the meeting 
at which the matter is to be considered.  A matter may be brought forward at a subsequent 
meeting following adoption by a member having voted in the affiirmative. Matters 
submitted for consideration by the Commission may be rescheduled to a subsequent 
Commission meeting when the Secretary has determined that any required materials and 
information have not been received by the specified time.   

 
Section 8. Agendas and other materials for each meeting shall, whenever possible, be delivered to 

the members of the Commission not later than three (3) working days preceding the 
meeting. 

 
Section 9. Actions of the Commission requiring approval of a two third (2/3) vote of all of the 

members are:   
 
 a) To revise or amend these Administrative Rules and Procedures (except items 

established in the statutes and regulations of the State of Wisconsin or the Municipal 
Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, which shall be as adopted by the applicable 
authoritative body).   

 
Section 10. The Commission may terminate any meeting at 10:00 p.m. or at any time thereafter with 

agenda items not yet considered.  Any agenda item(s) under consideration or not yet 
considered at the time of meeting termination under this section shall be continued to the 
next meeting.   

 
 



 
City of Franklin Environmental Commission Administrative Rules and Procedures  Page 4 
 
 
 
Article VIII.  Order of Business  
 
Section 1. Each Commission agenda shall provide for the following order of business:   
 
  I.   Call To Order and Roll call.  
 II.   Citizen Comment Period. 
                    III.   Approval of Minutes of previous meeting(s). 
                    IV.   Old Business.  
 V.   New business.  
                    VI.   Other business (e.g., items for future agendas, Comm. rules and procedures, etc.).  
                   VII.   Schedule next meeting. 
                  VIII.   Adjournment.  
 
Section 2. In general, the order of business shall follow the printed agenda.  The order of business 

may vary from the printed agenda by consensus of the Commission members present.   
 
 
Article IX.  Non-member Participation  
 
Section 1. Letters, documents and other records relevant to matters before the Commission or within 

Commission duties are welcome at any time by submission to the Secretary, subject to 
timing requirements established elsewhere herein.  Submissions related to a specific 
matter before the Commission will be considered when the specific matter is considered.  
Submissions related to other matters within the Commission duties will be considered in 
the Other Business section of the agenda or as otherwise deemed applicable by the 
Commission.   

 
Section 2. Except for properly noticed and scheduled public hearings, non-member testimony during 

Commission meetings shall be limited to a) applicants with matters before the 
Commission, b) persons with knowledge or expertise relevant to matters before the 
Commission or within Commission duties and c) the mayor and aldermen of the City of 
Franklin.  Such non-member testimony shall be permitted during the Citizen Comment 
Period or at the discretion of and upon recognition by the Chair or on consensus of the 
Commission members present, and upon statement of name, address and basis for 
testimony.   

 
Section 3. At a properly noticed and scheduled public hearing of the Commission, any person may 

speak on the specified subject of the hearing upon recognition by the Chair and statement 
of name and primary residence address.   

 
 
Article X.  Revisions, Amendments  
 
Section 1. Rules and procedures noted herein which are established in the statutes and regulations 

of the State of Wisconsin or the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin shall be as adopted 
and amended by the applicable authoritative body.   

 
Section 2. Other rules and procedures noted herein may be revised or amended by majority vote of 

the Commission resident members.   






























	01 2021-1103 Environmental Commission Agenda (revised)
	AGENDA
	IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	V. NEW BUSINESS


	02 2021-0922 Environmental Comm Minutes-draft
	03 email re HS Article Contributions
	04 2009-0407 EC Administrative Rules & Procedures Final
	05 Code of Conduct

